This document is made available electronically by the Minnesota Legislative Reference Library
as part of an ongoing digital archiving project. http://www.leg.state.mn.us/Irl/Irl.asp

Chris Steller

From: Wolf, Dan (PUC) <dan.wolf@state.mn.us>

Sent: Monday, March 4, 2019 4:18 PM

To: Osmek, Senator David J.; Rep.Jean Wagenius

Cc: Chris Steller; Mike Molzahn; Darrin Lee

Subject: PUC Report re Renewable Development Account Recommended Expenditures
Attachments: RDF Letter March 4 2019.pdf

Chairs Osmek and Wagenius:

Pursuant to Minn. Stat. § 116C.779, subd. 1, paragraph (n) [2018], attached you will find a letter with a
supplementary attachment from the Public Utilities Commission regarding recommended appropriations from
the Renewable Development Account. Per this provision of law, this report is to be submitted annually to the
Senate committee and the House committee with jurisdiction over energy policy and finance.

Please let me know if you have any questions.
Dan Wolf

Dan Wolf
Executive Secretary

Minnesota Public Utilities Commission
121 7th Place E, Suite 350

Saint Paul, MN 55101-2147
0:651-201-2217

F: 651-297-7073

mn.gov/puc

M? MINNesOTA

PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION

CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE: This message is only for the use of the individual(s) named above. Information in
this email or any attachment may be confidential or may be protected by state or federal law. Any
unauthorized disclosure, use, dissemination, or copying of this message is prohibited. If you are not the
intended recipient, do not read this email or any attachments and notify the sender immediately. Please
delete all copies of this communication.



MY MINNesOTA

PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION

March 4, 2019

Senator David J. Osmek

Chair, Energy and Utilities Finance and Policy Committee
Minnesota Senate Building, Room 2107

95 University Ave. W.

St. Paul, MN 55155

Representative Jean Wagenius

Chair, Energy and Climate Finance and Policy Division
State Office Building, Room 449

100 Rev. Dr. Martin Luther King Jr. Blvd.

St. Paul, MN 55155

Chairs Osmek and Wagenius:

Laws of Minnesota 2017, Chapter 94, Article 10, Section 3, amended Minn. Stat. § 116C.779,
subdivision 1, [renewable development account]. Among other changes, the Renewable
Development Account (RDA) was established as a State Special Revenue fund administered by
the Commissioner of Management and Budget, with expenditures from the RDA made by
legislative appropriation. Previously, the Renewable Development Fund (RDF) was managed by
Xcel Energy, in consultation with an advisory group, and the overall functioning of, and most
expenditures from, the RDF were required to be approved by the Minnesota Public Utilities
Commission (Commission).

Under the current amended provisions, the RDA advisory group is to design requests for
proposals, evaluate projects, and submit recommendations to Xcel Energy, which has sole
authority to determine which expenditures are submitted to the Legislature. The Commission is
to approve, disapprove, or, if agreed to by Xcel Energy, modify proposed expenditures.

The Commission is to annually present its recommendations to the Senate and House
committees with jurisdiction over energy policy and finance. The Commission received no
funding recommendations from the advisory group or from Xcel Energy since the effective date
of the amended statute. Therefore, the Commission has no recommended appropriations to
present to the Legislature at this time.
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On December 27, 2018, Xcel Energy filed a letter with the Commission stating that the amended
statute does not indicate who is to serve on the advisory group, how the cited third-party
evaluator should be selected, or how the administrative costs should be paid. Given the lack of
detail in the statute, there are a number of selection processes that need to be developed before
a recommendation of projects can be prepared. Therefore, Xcel Energy stated it is not able to
provide a recommendation of projects for funding at this time. The company stated it will seek
clarification on these statutory issues during the then-upcoming, now current, Legislative
Session.

The Commission is neither endorsing nor rejecting the observations made by Xcel Energy in its
December 27 letter. However, the Commission wants to be helpful in providing background
information as to recent Commission activities with regards to the legacy appropriations from
the RDF and its impact on the RDA to give you an effective frame of reference to work from in
your important role of managing this initiative going forward. We outline a few concerns in an
attachment to this letter about some ambiguities and uncertainties we has encountered in
implementing the 2017 statutory amendments, especially in regards to its responsibilities over
the legacy RDF and the transition from the legacy RDF to the RDA.

We would be happy to follow up on the issues raised in the attachment with you and/or your
staff.

Sincerely,

Lewict . U

Daniel P. Wolf
Executive Secretary

Attachment

c: Legislative Reference Library

To request this document in another format such as large print or audio, call 651.296.0406
(voice). Persons with a hearing or speech impairment may call using their preferred
Telecommunications Relay Service or email consumer.puc@state.mn.us for assistance.

2|Page


mailto:consumer.puc@state.mn.us
mswoboda
Wolf


Minnesota Public Utilities Commission Attachment to RDF Letter March 4, 2019

Background on the Renewable Development Account?

Overview of Renewable Development Legislation

Funding for renewable development was mandated as part of the 1994 “Prairie Island
legislation” codified in Minn. Stat. § 116C.779, that allowed the storage of spent nuclear fuel in
dry casks at Northern States Power Company’s (hereinafter referred to as Xcel Energy) Prairie
Island nuclear plant. The 1994 law required the company to transfer $500,000 a year after 1999
to fund a Renewable Development Fund (RDF) for each dry cask at the Prairie Island plant
containing fuel. The 1994 legislation did not contain any provisions for oversight of the RDF or
specify any role for the Minnesota Public Utilities Commission (Commission) or any other entity.

In 1999, the statute was amended to provide that expenditures from the Fund could be made
only after approval by the Commission. In 2003, the statute was further amended, including
changing the amount Xcel Energy was to transfer to the RDF to a flat $16 million annually, and
creating a Renewable Energy Production Incentive (REPI) to be funded from the RDF and
overseen by the Department of Commerce. In 2007, that statute was again amended to require
$350,000 annually per cask at Xcel Energy’s Monticello nuclear plant also be transferred to the
RDF. Changes were made in 2012 that further specified operational and administrative aspects
of the RDF and the Commission’s authority.

In 2017, Minn. Stat. §116C.779 was substantially amended [Laws of Minnesota 2017, Chapter 94,
Article 10, Section 3], replacing the RDF with a Renewable Development Account (RDA) that is a
Special Revenue fund in the state treasury, administered by Minnesota Management and Budget
(MMB). The RDA legislation includes a process for an advisory group to issue Requests for
Proposals (RFPs) and make recommendations to Xcel Energy for the projects that should be
funded; Xcel Energy determines which projects are brought forward to the Commission. The
Commission is to make its funding recommendations to the Legislature by February 15 of each
year. Expenditures from the RDA must be appropriated by law by the Legislature.

1 For more detailed information, the Legislature may wish to refer to the following:
e Commission Orders in Dockets 00-1583, 03-1883, 07-675, and 12-1278

e Annual Commission dockets reviewing RDF financial reports and establishing rate rider recovery
factors. The most recent Commission decisions are in Dockets 17-712 and 18-628.

e Xcel Energy annual RDF reports to the Legislature and biennial RDF reports to the Commission.
The February 15, 2019 Xcel Energy reports, combined into one document, is in e-dockets under
all of the docket numbers in the first bullet point.
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Minnesota Public Utilities Commission Attachment to RDF Letter March 4, 2019

Overview of Commission Implementation of RDF Legislation

The Commission has overseen four cycles of RDF grant processes, in Dockets 00-1583, 03-1883,
07-675, and 12-1278. The Commission issued its first RDF Order on April 20, 2001 in Docket
00-1583, which established the RDF administrative structure, governance process, operations
guidelines, regulatory oversight procedures, fund accounting, and cost recovery. Subsequently,
the Commission issued a number of Orders on these issues, to reflect changes in legislation,
changes in technologies, and lessons learned.

Over the course of the four RDF grant cycles that went through the Commission’s oversight
processes, more than 80 RDF projects were approved and moved forward; 65 have been
completed and 16 are active as of December 31, 2018. In addition, Renewable Energy
Production Incentive (REPI) programs are funded through the RDF and administered by the
Department of Commerce, and various other legislatively-mandated programs have been
funded.

Xcel Energy’s most recent report states that since 2001, approximately $92.6 million has been
provided for RDF grant payments, $92.6 million for REPI, $126.5 million for legislatively-
mandated projects and programs, and $2.3 million for general program support.

Uncertainties on Implementation of Transition from RDF to RDA

The Commission’s experience to-date with the transition from the RDF to the RDA, and the
prospect that these two funds will continue to co-exist for several more years, have caused some
uncertainties about the general administration of the legacy RDF and new RDA that the

Commission would like to bring to the Legislature’s attention.

Commission Responsibility for Legacy RDF Matters

The 2017 amendments deleted language requiring Commission approval of expenditures
from the account.



https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/?id=116C.7791
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The Commission has continued to make decisions related to legacy RDF grant projects that were
approved by the Commission prior to the 2017 amendments, in response to specific petitions
requesting action by Xcel, grant recipients, and other stakeholders. For example, the Commission
in an October 15, 2018 Order in Docket 17-712, directed Xcel Energy to exercise its termination
rights under the Crown Hydro grant contract. In an October 11, 2018 Order in Docket 12-1278,
the Commission approved amendments to the grant contract with the Minnesota Renewable
Energy Society.

The Commission assumes it has authority to continue to enforce and refine its past Orders and
make related decisions with respect to these projects that received grants under the legacy RDF.
However, the statutory construction of the 2017 amendments has created some confusion as to
how requested changes in legacy RDF grant projects should be managed. The Commission would
welcome additional clarity or direction from the Legislature if this is not the intended result.

Process for Project Recommendations under the RDA

The 2017 amendments set out a framework for recommending to the Legislature projects to be
funded through the RDA. It includes having an advisory group issue RFPs, evaluate projects, and
recommend to Xcel Energy which projects should be funded. The utility has the sole authority to
decide which projects shall be submitted by the advisory group to the Legislature.? The
Commission is to only approve, disapprove, or modify with Xcel Energy’s permission, proposed
expenditures. The statute then provides that the Commission is to (also) submit its
recommended appropriations from the Account to the Legislature by February 15 of each year.

The statute does not specify how these processes get implemented, and whether any entity other
than the advisory group and Xcel Energy have any oversight or implementation role. Some of the
ambiguities are:

e Who determines the make-up of the advisory group?

e Do the advisory group and Xcel Energy determine when an RFP is issued, what total dollars
from the RDA should be dedicated to potential projects for the RFP, the terms of the RFP
including what types of projects are eligible, and similar issues?

e How is the advisory group to be funded?

Xcel Energy and the advisory group did not issue RFPs in 2017 or 2018, and consequently no
further processes took place.

2 The Commission assumes the intent is that Xcel Energy submit the projects to the Commission instead
of, (or perhaps in addition to), the Legislature, since the statute goes on to require the Commission to
recommend proposed expenditures to the Legislature.
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Recovery of RDA Amounts

Minn. Stat. §216B.1645, provides in part that:
216B.1645 POWER PURCHASE CONTRACT OR INVESTMENT

Subdivision 1. Commission authority. Upon the petition of a public utility, the Public
Utilities Commission shall approve or disapprove power purchase contracts,
investments, or expenditures entered into or made by the utility to satisfy the wind
and biomass mandates contained in sections 216B.169, 216B.2423, and 216B.2424,
and to satisfy the renewable energy objectives and standards set forth in
section 216B.1691, including reasonable investments and expenditures made to:

(1) transmit the electricity generated from sources developed under those sections
that is ultimately used to provide service to the utility's retail customers, including
studies necessary to identify new transmission facilities needed to transmit electricity
to Minnesota retail customers from generating facilities constructed to satisfy the
renewable energy objectives and standards, provided that the costs of the studies
have not been recovered previously under existing tariffs and the utility has filed an
application for a certificate of need or for certification as a priority project under
section 216B.2425 for the new transmission facilities identified in the studies;

(2) provide storage facilities for renewable energy generation facilities that contribute
to the reliability, efficiency, or cost-effectiveness of the renewable facilities; or

(3) develop renewable energy sources from the account required in section 116C.779.

Subdivision 2. Cost recovery. The expenses incurred by the utility over the duration
of the approved contract or useful life of the investment and expenditures made
pursuant to section 116C.779 shall be recoverable from the ratepayers of the utility,
to the extent they are not offset by utility revenues attributable to the contracts,
investments, or expenditures. Upon petition by a public utility, the commission shall
approve or approve as modified a rate schedule providing for the automatic
adjustment of charges to recover the expenses or costs approved by the commission
under subdivision 1, . ..

The Commission approved a rate schedule allowing Xcel Energy to recover expenditures from the
inception of the RDF. Xcel Energy files a fund accounting and proposed recovery factor annually
which is reviewed by the Commission and results in a recovery factor that is included on customer
bills.

Minn. Stat. § 216B.1645 was not amended in conjunction with the 2017 RDA statutory
amendments. Some ambiguity may exist with respect to how Xcel Energy’s annual transfers into
the RDA are covered under this rate rider language. The Commission has reviewed and allowed
the 2018 and 2019 annual recovery amounts to include the transfers to the RDA. The Commission
would welcome additional clarity or direction from the Legislature if this is not the intent.
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Recovery of RDF and RDA Administrative Costs

The 2017 amendments deleted language allowing the Commission to approve recovery by Xcel
Energy of expenditures for administering the RDF. In its review of the RDF/RDA annual recovery
factor to be in effect for 2018, the Commission determined that the change in the statute did not
provide for recovery of administrative expenses related to the legacy RDF or to the RDA. Xcel did
not ask for recovery of administrative expenses through the annual rider recovery factor for 2019,
based on the Commission’s earlier decision. The Commission would welcome additional clarity or
direction from the Legislature if this is not the intended result.

Treatment of Changes in Legacy RDF Grant Amounts

The 2017 amendments directed Xcel Energy to withhold from the transfer to the RDA amounts
awarded in previous RDF grant cycles not yet expended. However, some legacy RDF grants
subsequently were cancelled or changed, such as Crown Hydro and the Minnesota Renewable
Energy Society projects discussed earlier. The statute does not specify how the related amounts
that were withheld from transfer from the RDA should be treated.

The Commission would welcome additional clarity or direction from the Legislature on this issue.

Xcel’s RDF/RDA Transfer Obligation

Under the 2017 amendments, Xcel was required to transfer on July 1, 2017, “all funds in the
renewable development account previously established under the subdivision . ..” Xcel did not
transfer any funds at that time, stating that there were no funds in the account collected from
ratepayers. However, Xcel Energy did have unexpended and uncommitted per cask obligations of
approximately $25 million.

If the 2017 amendments had not been made, those monies would have been rolled forward and
used for a future RFP or other mandate. The Commission wants to emphasize that it designed the
legacy RDF appropriation mechanism in such a fashion as to protect ratepayers from being
charged for the collection of money out of their pockets to just remain unexpended in an account
waiting for some possible future grant.

Therefore, at the July 1, 2017 date when the new legislation mandated a transfer of unobligated
RDF funds to the RDA, there were no accumulated actual assets sitting in a dedicated fund at Xcel
Energy; rather this approximately $25 million amount represented potential future resources that
might be expended for a new RFP funding cycle or other mandates. A future cycle never occurred
due to the 2017 amendments and, thus, no new RDF projects and grants were approved, and no
monies were taken from ratepayers to be placed as "funds" into the legacy RDF.

The Commission determined that instituting a substantial one-time rate increase would be
contrary both to the objective for implementation of the statute and the ratepayers’ interest.
Nonetheless, the Commission would welcome additional clarity or direction from the Legislature
on the appropriate treatment of uncollected per cask obligations from the past legacy RDF.
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